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CLAIRBORNE CO. MS WWI DRAFT LIST

Residents of Claibome County [MS] in 1917-18. The infor-
mation below was abstracted from by Raymond H. Banks
from civilian registration cards completed in 1917-1918.
All rights reserved.

TERRELL, Jesse Delandry 30 May 1897, W Grand Gulf,
MS; Claibome, MS

TERRELL, Jesse Delandry 30 May 1897; With his dad,
b. Madison Co. MS; Claibome, MS

TERRELL, John 5 Jul 1881; b. Claibome, MS
TERRELL, William 23 May 1890; b. Insmore, MS; Clai-
bome; MS

SOUTH CAROLINA DEEDS

TERRELL TO QUALS DEED

1785 UNION COUNTY, SC
Contributed to The USGenWeb Archives by: Lorene
Rambo; Hocott@aol.com; 18 July 1998

James TERRELL sells land to Moses QUALS
Deeds of Union County, South Carolina; Book A, page 80

This Indenture made the seventeenth day of December in
the year of Our Lord One thousand seven hundred and

1263



TERRELL TRAILS

PUBLISHER’S STATEMENT

TERRELL TRAILS is published quarterly by the TER-
RELL SOCIETY OF AMERICA, INC.

© 1999 by TERRELL SOCIETY OF AMERICA,
INC.

Reproduction in part is permitted if credit is given and
address at lower right accompanies the reprint.

SUBSCRIPTION RATES PER YEAR:

Society Membership (includes TRAILS)................ $15.00
Lifetime membership..............ccccooiiinviiicnniens $150.00
Extra Charges

OO TS A st i Sttt ais 5.00
AENIIL s s tatee e s e S 5.00
Back issue/sample copy(each)............cc..cccooeviiinnnns 5.00

¢ RATES SUBJECT TO CHANGE
WITHOUT NOTICE

SOCIETY OFFICERS
M DR CUTermill.... . i ismnamrmrsis President
Mr. Jeddie Mack Terrell......................... Vice-President
M JoMN CPRMEE " - v s et Vice-President
Dan:Brinson:::-nsnnniinai Secretary/Editor
Mr. Guy Livingston ClarkeJr............ Treasurer
LENDING LIBRARY orders to:
Mr. Guy L. Clarke, Jr.
9423 Farmington Drive
RichmondVA 23229-5337
All other correspondence to:

TERRELL SOCIETY OF AMERICA, INC
Dan Brinson

128 20th Ave NW

Cairo, GA 31728-1017

INTERNET E-MAIL:
terrell@mail.CairoNet.com
dbrinson@mail.grady.public.lib.ga.us

Eighty five and in the ninth year of the Independency of the
United States Between James TERRELL of Union County
and State of South Carolina of the One part and Moses
QUALS of the same place of the Other part

WITNESSETH that the said James Terrell for an Consid-
eration of the sum of three hundred pounds lawfull money
of the State aforesaid to him in hand paid by the said Moses
Quals at and before the Ensealing and delivery of these
presents the Receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged Hath
Granted Bargained Sold and by these presents doth Bargain
Sell Allien Convey and Confirm unto the said Moses Quals
his Heirs and assigns for ever all the Right Title Claim or
Interest and Demand Whatsoever of him the said James
Terrell To a Certain Tract of land laying on Broad River in
Union County Containing One hundred and thirty four
Acres

Onginally Granted to the said James Terrel by a patent
bearing date the twentyfirst day of January one thousand
seven hundred and eightyfive ascertained by Courses and
distance as follows viz Beginning at a black Gum on the
Island on the Bank of the River thence So. 45 W 3773 toa
Red Oak thence N. 43 W. 35.75 to a Spanish Oak thence N
45 E 37.75 to a Stake thence to the Beginning.

NOW THIS INDENTURE Witnesseth that the said James
Terrell hath Bargained Sold Conveyed and Confirmed unto
the said Moses Quals now in his Actual Possession being by
virtue of a Statute for transferring Uses into possession and
to his Heirs and Assigns for ever all that tract of Land
Containing one hundred and thirty four Acres Together with
all and Singular the houses orchards Building, Improve-
ments Woods Ways Waters Water Courses Rents Issue
Profits and Advantages thereunto belonging or in any wise
Appurtaining and the Reversion and Reversions Remainder
and Remainders, and every part and parcel thereof, and all
the estate, Right Title Interest Use and possession property
Claim and demand Whatsoever ofhim the said James Terrell
of into or out of the Land premises and every part thereof,
to have hold the said plantation or Tract of Land Containing
One hundred and thirty four Acres Originally Granted as
aforesaid and every the premises unto the said Moses Quals
his Heirs or Assigns and the said James Terrell doth hereby
for himself his Heirs Executors Administrators or assigns
doth Covenant and promise and Agree to and with the said
Moses Quals his Heirs and Assigns in Manner and form as
follows that is to say he the said James Terrell now is and
untill the Execution of these presents shall stand Seized of
a Good sure perfect and Indefeasible Estate of Inheritance
in fee Simple of and in all the aforesaid plantation or tract
of Land Containing one hundred thirty four acres with the
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Rights Members Appurtenances without any manner of

Condition Trust or Mortgage Judgment Execution orincum-
brance whatso ever to alter Change or determine the same
And Also the same Moses Quals his Heirs and Assigns Shall
and may from time to time and at all times hereafter peace-
ably and Quietly have hold use Occupy and Enjoy the said
plantation of One hundred and thirtyfour Acres of Land
without any manner of trouble, hindrance, Molestation,
Interruption or denial of the said James Terrell his Heirs and
Assigns of all and every of them and every Other person or
persons and lastly the said James Terrell for himself his
Heirs Executors administrators the said plantation of One
hundred and thirty four Acres with the premises appurte-
nances unto the said Moses Quals his Heirs and Assigns
Against him the said James Terrel his Heirs and Assigns and
all and every other person or persons whatsoever shall and
will warrant and for ever defend by these presents

IN WITNESS my hand hereunto set and Seal the day and
year above written,

Signed: James Terrell

Signed Sealed and Delivered

In presence of

Abner (his x mark) ROBISON
John (his x mark) ROBISON
Henry SMITH

Recorded the 27 day of March 1786

TERRILL TO GUITON DEED
1791 UNION COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
Contributed to by: Lorene Rambo; Hocott@aol.com

1791 James TERRILL sells 150 acres to Nathaniel GUI-
TON. Deeds of Union County, South Carolina; Book C,
pages 83-84

James TERRILL to Nathaniel GUITON

THIS INDENTURE Made this seventh day of November in
the year of Our lord One thousand Seven hundred and
Ninety one and Sixteenth year of the Sovereignty and Inde-
pendency of the United States of America Between James
TERRILL of Spartanburgh County of the One part and
Nathaniell GUITON of Union County and State of South
Carolina of the other part.

Witnesseth that the said James TERRILL for and in Con-
sideration of the sum of Fifty Pound Sterling Money to him
in hand well and truly paid by the Said Nathaniel GUITON
at and before the Sealing and Delivery of these presents the
receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged he the said James

“TERRILL hath bargained Sold Enfrossed Conveyed ant

confirmed unto the said Nathaniel GUITON and his Heir
and assigns forever all the Right Title claim Interest anc
demand whatsoever of him the said James TERRILL :
certain tract of Land lying and being in the County of Unior
and State of South Carolina on Broad River Containing One
hundred and Fifty acres Originally granted to Mannon
GORE by his excellency the Govemor of North Carolin:
by a Pattent bearing date the Twenty second day of Decem-
ber in the year of our Lord 1768 and Conveyed from the said
GORE to Hugh QUINN and from said Quinn to Moses
QUARRELS from said QUARRELLS to James TER-
RILL apurtained by Courses and distances as Follows
(Towit) Beginning at a Chesnut and Hickory on the N. Side
of the River on the side of the Island and Runs Thence
crossing the Island and River South 60 W. 155 Poles to a
pine thence S. 30 E. 155 poles to a White Oak thence N 60
E. 155 poles to a stake in the River thence to the beginning.
Now This Indenture Witnesseth that the said James TER-
RILL hath bargained sold and conveyed and Confirmed
unto the said Nathaniel GUITON and to his heirs and assigns
forever all the aforesaid tract or parcel of Land Containing
150 acres as aforesaid Situate as aforesaid Together with all
and Singular the houses orchards buildings Improvements
woods ways water water Courses Rents Issues profits and
advantages thereof or belonging or in any wise appertaining
and the reversion and Reversions Remainder and Remain-
ders and every part and partel thereof and all the Estate Right
Title Interest use trust or possession property claim and
demand whatsoever of him the said James TERRILL of into
or out of the said premises and every part and parcel thereof
to have and to hold the said Plantation or tract of land
Containing 150 acres as aforesaid and every of the premises
unto the said Nathaniel GUITON and to his heirs and assigns
forever and the said James TERRILL doth hereby for him-
selfhis heirs and assigns Covenant and agree to and with the
said Nathaniel GUITON his heirs and assigns in manner as
follows that the said Nathaniel GUITON his heris and
assigns shall and May from time to time and at all times
hereafter peacebly and Quietly have hold use Occupy and
enjoy the Plantation or tract of land Containing as aforesaid
without Any Manner of trouble hindrance Molestation or
denial of him the said James TERRILL his heirs or assigns
and all and every of them and Them and from every other
person or persons Will Warrant and forever defend the
premises aforesaid unto the said Nathaniel GUITON and to
his heirs and assigns forever.
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In Witness whereofthe said James TERRILL hath hereunto
Set his hands and affixt his seal the date above written.
James TERRILL

Signed sealed and delivered in Presence of Test.

Nicholas CORRY

John SMITH

7th November 1791

Then received of Nathaniel GUITON the sum of Fifty
pounds Sterling money being the full Consideration Money
of the within Contents. Received by me: James TERRILL
Nicholas CORRY

John SMITH

South Carolina, Union County:

Personally appeared before me Charles SIMS a Justice for
the County aforesaid Nicholas CORRY and made oath as
the law directs that he saw James TERRILL sign Seal and
Deliver the within Instrument as his Act and Deed and that
he saw John SMITH subscribe his name as a witness
thereunto with himself at the same time.

Swom to this 2nd Day of Apnil 1792,

Charles SIMS, J. P.

Nicholas CORREY

Recorded 3rd April 1792

SC MARRIAGES SITE

For early (pre 1800) SC marriages try http://www.root-
sweb.com/~usgenweb/sc/scfiles.htm

ANSON CO NC SITE

Because so many of our roots came from “seedlings’
planted in North Carolina, try the following site.

“The site is named Selected Anson Co. Abstracts 1815-
1836; however, the dates go back as far at the middle 1700s.
Provides the from and to the page where deed is found, date
and a description.”

www.hal-pc.org/~happy/littie/ansdeed3.html.

To subscribe to Larry Stephens’ Regional lists, covering
all parts of the USA, goto

http:/php.indiana.edu/~stephenl/genealog.htm
FREE GENEALOGY SITE

GeneaNet 1s FREE for all to use!!

If you are a family genealogist or a member of a genealogy
society, GeneaNet is for you! Try the GeneaNet sumame
search engine! There are nearly 3.7 millon sumame entries
in this popular and growing database!
http://www.autumnstar.com/GeneaNet/

KINDRED KONNECTIONS

SURNAME BROWSE: WITHIN 500,000 UNIQUE SUR-
NAMES: NEW!

Knowing exactly what SURNAMES are represented in the
research center is what you have been asking for. Now you
can easily browse through an alphabetical listing that will
give you a clear idea of every unique sumame that is
represented in the Kindred Konnections research center.
Please drop by for a quick visit and see the free Alphabetical
Sumame Browse and find your ancestors sumame.

Sumame Browse Index:
http://www.kindredkonnections.com/surnames.html

or while at our home page, go to the SITE MAP and touch
the SURNAME BROWSE button.

QUERIES

Limited to two per member per year &
limited to 50 words each maximum.

I am interested in your Terrell Society. How can I get on
your mailing list? | have Terrell in my Cherokee connection
with Chief John Watts. Paula McGee; pmcegee72@gte.net

TARRALLS’ BAY SC

I’'m trying to find information on a William SNIPES who
witnessed a deed in1795, for land near ‘TARRELLS’ bay
mn what is now Marion County [SC]. He is not mentioned in
the family history of the SNIPES family who settled this
area, nor is it known where he came from (possibly NC).
Any information to help identify this individual is appreci-
ated. (BTW, this is not W. Clay SNIPES.) William Bill
Snipes; wsnipes@linknet.kitsap.lib.wa.us

LA TERRELL BIBLE RECORDS

Submitted by: Jane McManus; Email: memanus@link-
net.net

1266



TERRELL TRAILS

William S. TERRELL was a Baptist Minister in Rapides
and Vemon Parishes in the mid 1800’s. He constituted the
Laurel Hill Baptist Church in Hicks (Vernon) LA in 1869.
He was married to Mary SAUCER, probably in Missis-
sippi, and 13 children were bom.

After Mary’s death, William Terrell married a much
younger woman, and had 3 additional sons.

The second Ms. Terrell and children lived in Longleaf LA
after her husband died, but no information is available on
this second family. The Bible is currently owned by O. C.
TERRELL of West Monroe LA. Date of publication of
Bible was not available. All entries appear to be made by
one person in beautiful script handwriting, and were tran-
scribed by Jane P. McManus exactly as recorded in the
Bible.

William S. TERRELL was bom Sept. 10th 1815.
Mary TERRELL was bom September 21. 1820.
Martha R. TERRELL was bom Septr 12th 1839,
Warren TERRELL was bom Septr 6th A.D. 1842,
Morgan F. TERRELL was bom June 1st 1847
David E. TERRELL was bom May 27th 1848.
Josiah P. TERRELL was bom Jan 21st 1850.

Wiley H. TERRELL was bom July 8th 1851.
Woodard C. TERRELL was bom Nov 25th 1852,
William S. TERRELL jun: born Jany. 16th 1854,
John M. TERRELL was bom Decr. 26th 1855.
Norval R. TERRELL was bom Feby. 19th 1858,
Jasper O. TERRELL was bom Septr. 16th 1860.
Newton I. TERRELL was bom September 5th 1862.
Bazzel S. TERRELL was bom November the 26, 1869.

TERRELL SITE

Submitted by Miss PJ_Achramowicz@spe.sony.com

Hi Dan: Thought this Terrell page might be of interest. Don’t
know if she’s a member of the society. [all on one line)
http://www.uftree.com/UFT/WebPages/juanitaschust
er/PATGRAND/index.htm

TEXAS TERRELLS

Survey = Person or Concern bearing the land certificate at
time survey filed.

Block = Block number.

Grantee = Person or Concem to whom the land was actually
awarded.

Leag = League Flag. L = 4,428 acres, B = League + Labor.
Labor = 177 acres.

Section = Section Number

Abs = Number of the Abstract on file at county courthouse
and at the Texas General land Office in Austin.

Key: Survey; Blk; Grantee; Leag Section; Abs

BRISCOE COUNTY TEXAS

Survey; Blk Grantee, Leag Section; Abs

R. F. STEVENSON: A190; E. TERRELL; 62; 1641
A.G.STEVENSON; A190; E. TERRELL; 72; 1574
J. W.KENT; A190; E. TERRELL; 119; 1643

COLORADO COUNTY TEXAS
Survey, Blk Grantee, Leag Section; Abs

HENRY TERRELL; H. TERRELL; 556
HENRY TERRELL; H. TERRELL,

COMANCHE COUNTY TEXAS

Survey, Blk Grantee; Leag Section; Abs
GEORGE W TERRELL; G. TERRELL, 936
GEORGE W TERRELL; G. TERRELL; 937

KAUFMAN COUNTY TEXAS

Survey; Blk Grantee; Leag Section; Abs
ROBERT A TERRELL; R. TERRELL; 35 540
ROBERT A TERRELL; R. TERRELL; 52 557
CHARLES I TERRELL; TERRELL; ; 558

MOORE COUNTY TEXAS

H&GN RR CO:; Q; H& GNRR.CO.; 25; 902
H&GN RR CO; Q; J. TERRELL; 26; 985
H&GN RR CO; Q; H& GN.RR.CO.; 27; 901
H&GN RR CO; Q; H. TERRELL; 28; 988
H&GN RR CO; Q; H.& GN.RR.CO.; 29; 904
H&GN RR CO; Q; H. TERRELL; 30; 987

C. B. MC CLAIN; M2; SWINDLER; 25; 1284
T&NO RR CO; 2T, T& NORR.CO; 17; 994
T&NO RR CO; 2T; B. POLLEY; 18; 964
T&NO RR CO; 2T, T.& NO.RR.CO.; 19; 995
T&NO RR CO; 2T; B. POLLEY; 20; 963
H&GN RR CO; Q; S. KILLEN; 24; 919
H&GN RR CO; Q; H& GNRR.CO ; 23; 1041
H&GN RR CO; Q; H. TERRELL; 22; 986
H&GN RR CO; Q; H& GN.RR.CO.; 21; 1040
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H&GN RR CO; Q; J. TERRELL; 20; 983
H&GN RR CO; Q. H& GN.RR.CO; 19; 1039
J. C. GANNON; M2; J. GANNON; 24; 1089
T&NO RR CO; 2T; B. POLLEY, 32; 961
T&NO RR CO; 2T, T& NORR.CO;31;310
T&NO RR CO; 2T T& N.O.RR.CO ; 29; 300
T&NO RR CO; 2T; L. KELLY; 30; 1124
H&GNRR CO; Q; H& GNRR.CO,; 13,903
H&GN RR CO; Q; H. SEISE; 14; 1170

H&GN RR CO; Q; F.STARR; 14; 1198
H&GN RR CO;, Q; H& GN.RR CO.; 15; 1037
H&GN RR CO; Q; L. CARDIFF; 16; 1322
H&GN RR CO; Q; H. TERRELL; 16; 989
H&GNRR CO; Q; H& GNRR.CO; 17, 1038
H&GN RR CO; Q; J. TERRELL; 18; 984
T&NO RR CO; 2T; T& NO.RR.CO; 33; 311
T&NO RR CO; 2T; L. PATTEN, 34; 1168
T&NO RR CO; 2T; B. POLLEY; 34; 962
T&NO RR CO; 2T; T& NORR CO ;35,312
T&NO RR CO; 2T; D. MC KEE; 36; 1044
H&GN RR CO; Q; J. TERRELL; 14; 982
H&GN RR CO; Q; S. KILLEN; 12; 920

RUSK COUNTY TEXAS

Survey; Blk Grantee; Leag Section; Abs
JAMES TERRELL; J. TERRELL; 780
TERRELL HENSON; T. HENSON; 397

PLEASANT TERRELL; CAROLINE CO.
VA

DEED 49-132 CLAYTOR, Thomas C. (fr) HUDGINS,
Robert tr.

This indenture made and entered into this 10th day of Apnil
1843, between Robert HUDGINS and Samuel C.SCOTT
of the first part and Thomas C. CLAYTOR of the second
part whereas Herbert ANDERSON being indebted to
Pleasant TERRELL in the sum of one thousand dollars
with interest thereon from the 12th day of July 1841 did in
order to spare this payment thereof by an indenture bearing
date on the said 12th of July covey to the said HUDGIN his
heirs and assigns, all that tract or parcel of land on which the
said ANDERSON thus resides situated in the County of
Caroline adjoining the lands of Lewis GEORGE and
Robert DICKINSON and containing between six and
seven hundred acres and also sundry slaves, in trust that in
case said ANDERSON should make default in he payment

of the said debt it should be the duty of the said HUDGIN
at the request of the said TERRELL to take possession of
the said land and slaves and after having first duly advertised
the time and place of sale for at least thirty days by adver-
tisement to be posted at the front door of the courthouse of
said county and at one or more public places near said land
and inserted in some newspaper published in the city of
Richmond .. the said land and slaves to sale by public
auction to the highest bidder for cash and whereas the said
Herbert ANDERSON and Francis his wife did by their
indenture bearing date of the 11th of June 1842, in order to
secure Robert HUDGIN the payment of the sum of six
hundred and eleven dollars and forty seven cents and by
single bill dated on the 10th of November 1841. Convey to
the said Samuel C. SCOTT a certain tract or parcel of land
upon and being in the said county of Caroline bounded by
the land of Robert DICKINSON to theirs being the same
land conveyed by the said ANDERSON to the said HUDG-
INS by the indenture aforesaid, upon trust that if the said
ANDERSON should make default in the payment of the
said debt to said HUDGIN by the said Samuel C. SCOTT
should proceed to sell ..by public auction to the highest
bidder for cash or by private sale for cash or upon a credit
..he should .. best the contingent right of dower for the said
Francis in the land aforesaid reference in which deed are
here made and are to be considered as apart of this indenture
and whereas the said Herbert ANDERSON having failed
to pay as ... the debt due to the said TERRELL as the debt
due to the said HUDGINS and the beneficiaries under said
deeds having required a sale of the said tract of land and
Negroes named in said first deed the said HUDGIN in
execution of the trust created by the deed after having given
thirty days notice of the time place and terms of sale, by
causing an advertisement of such sale to be inserted and
regularly continued in the Richmond Whig, a newspaper
published in the City of Richmond and by advertisement
posted at Ruther Glen [VA] and at the front door of the
courthouse of said county expose to sale at public auction to
the highest bidder upon a credit of one and two years (except
as to the sum of twenty-five dollars which was required in
cash) purchaser to give bonds with approved security bear-
ing interest from the day of sales and a deed of trust upon
the land sold (said terms of sale being attended from the time
prescribed by the deed of trust with the sanction and ap-
proval of the.......
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OTHER DEEDS APPARENTLY IN SAME COUNTY:
BROOKE, Edward F tr (fr) TERRELL, Alfred & ux 54
10

BROOKE, Eliza H tr. (fr) TERRELL, Alfred & ux54 10
MADISON, William (to) TERRELL, Lindley tr 46 376

WOOD CO., WV BIRTHS 1853-1866

Name of Child, Date, Parents Name

TERIL, Martha: 11/3/1855; John & Trephena TERIL
TERRELL, Elizabeth E.; 11/4/1864; John & Tryphena
TERRELL

TERRELL, George F., 12/2/1861; John & Tryfeema
TERRELL

TERRELL, John T.; 2/1860; J. & M. TERRELL
TERRIL, Amanda T.; 10/15/1858;, John & Trypheny
TERRIL

WWI DRAFT REGISTRATION
DATABASE

Submitted by Barry Whitney; barryw@therock.mcg.edu
from Ancestry Daily News; From the publisher of “The
Source” and Ancestry Magazine; http:/www.ances-
try.com 12 April 1999 Database of the Day: World War |
Draft Registrations (Update)

Editor's Note: This database was free for 10 days in April.
It is still available to members of Ancestry.com. DFB

In 1917 and 1918, approximately 24 million men, (98% of
men present in America), born between 1873 and 1900
completed draft registration cards.

This civilian registration is often confused with induction
into the military; however, a minonty of the civilian men
who registered were actually never called up for military
service. During these two years, three registration days
were held in which the registrants completed a registration
card that generally included, among other information, birth
date, birth location, father’s birth location, and the address
of next of kin. This updated file adds over 200,000 names
to the previous database, bringing the total number of names
provided to almost 900,000. It adds information from Ala-
bama, Arkansas, Hawaii, lllinois, Louisiana, Maine, Mary-
land, Massachusetts, Michigan, New York, North Dakota,
Oregon, and Vermont.

Bibliography: Banks, Ray. World War I Civilian Draft
Registrations Salt Lake City, UT, 1995-.

To search this database, go to:
http://www.ancestry.com/ancestry/search/3172.htm

TERRELL R. BRYANT OF AR

Excerpted from PEOPLE AROUND ENOLA (Faulkner Co.,
AR) 1830 TO 1880 by Debrill INGRAM

In discussing the early history of this part of the country, and
its settlement, we have to bring in just a bit ofhistory. Where
we are now was a part of Missouri territory until 1819. We
were a part of New Madrid County, and this county reached
from New Madrid, Missouri, to the north Louisiana line.
Louisiana was made a state in 1812, Missoun in 1819 and
Arkansas in 1836,

The principal settlements in Arkansas in 1819 were: David-
sonville, Arkansas Post, Cadron, Hopefield, Camden,
Helena, Washington and Little Rock. A few settlers were
scattered around Pine Bluff, Batesville, Grand Glaise, Gil-
trough and Jacksonport. ‘

November 20, 1819, was the first election of any kind in
Arkansas. On February 4, 1820, the county seat of Pulaski
county was moved to the mouth of the Cadron, to the town
of Cadron, and what we now call Cedar Park. Little Rock
was made the state capitol in 1821. At that time, it only had
one store, with very scanty supplies, but with a large supply
of “Old Bald Face”.

By 1825 the Greathouse Home was already built at what we
now call Liberty. It was 38 miles north of Little Rock and 8
miles east of what is now Conway, on the Little Rock and
Clinton road, which were by Holland, by Jonathan
HARDIN's house, by where my great grandfather IN-
GRAN later lived, and on to Clinton. It joined the Batesville
road there.

The Searcy-Springfield road crossed this road at Jonathan
HARDIN's house. The Des Arc-Lewisburg road came by
El Paso, which was called Peach Orchard Gap in those days;
by Bnistol, a mile south of Enola, on by Union Valley
Church, and joined the Little Rock-Clinton road at the
Bowie place. Most of the early settlers in this part of the
country, settled on or near one of these roads.

I have heard all my life of the settlement of Jonathan
HARDIN at the Hardin Hill on the Cadron. What has
ntrigued me even more is Who were the next settlers? In
this connection, you must remember that roads were almost
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nonexistent, in those days. The first road of any kind to touch
Faulkner county anywhere, was the Little Rock to Cadron
road in 1807.

Cadron was one of the early post offices, having been
established in 1820, with Eli J. LEWIS as the Postmaster.
Cadron was dying out in the late 1820’s and the office was
discontinued. The people around what is now Conway then
got their mail at a new office called Green Grove. It was near
where Bill ROSS now has a store. Cadron was reestablished
in 1848 and the office was at Jonathan HARDIN's house
in 1850. Census records for 1860 show it at Greatgrand Pa
INGRAM's post office. About his same time, we had an
office at Caney Creek. It was about a mile and a half
southeast of Enola. Muddy Bayou township reached from
Mt. Vemon to the Cadron, and south of the Searcy-Spring-
field road to the Bayou. North of this road was Benton
Township and it reached north to Quitman and Heber
Springs. West of the Hardin hill to about 5 miles west of
Greenbrier was Hardin Township. East Fork was south of
that and Cadron was south of East Fork.

Mail service in those days was even worse than it is at
present. You had to go get your mail, when you thought you
might have some, and you had to do that until 1904. There
was no RFD service at Enola until Sept. 17, 1914, and
Marvin MATTHEWS was the first carrier.

The first steamboat to go up the Arkansas River, by Toad-
suck, was the Fagle in 1822. The worst river accident that
ever happened on the Arkansas River was the Lewisburg in
1820, when the boilers blew up on the Cherokee. It was
bound for Ft. Gibson. It sank in 15 feet of water, with 17
killed and 20 seriously wounded.

I offer these bits of history just to show what a primitive state
this country was in, which our forefathers began to come in,
in the 1830’s. The families that I will discuss settled within
five or six miles each way of Enola. If | overlook some early
settler, or make you kin to the wrong person, it’s just and
error on my part. Lots of early history is very hard to prove.

Jonnie BRYANT 45, and his wife Hannah MITCHELL
46, both from South Carolina, and his son Absolum 18, and
Terrell R. BRYANT 20 and his wife Clausa 19, both from
Tennessee, came to Enolain 1855 Jonnie BRYANT settled
about a mile north of the Marcus Hill Church,

I have heard a story about Absolum BRYANT not wanting
to come to Arkansas, and almost every nite he would run off
and try to go back to Mississippi. This finally got old, and
one nite before he made his trip, Terrell BRYANT wrapped

a white sheet around himself and disappeared. A little later,
as Absolum was making his retum threat, Terrell BRY-
ANT stepped out from behind a tree and greeted him.
Absolum immediately reversed his direction, and after that
he lead the way into Arkansas.

In 1858 Terrell BRYANT bought 65 acres, lying south of
the Searcy-Springfield road and one halfmile east of Marcus
Hill Church, for $100. He bought this place from his uncle
Jonnie and I’'m looking at the original deed as | write this.
It was witnessed by Absolum and Hannah BRYANT and
I saw from this deed that they could both read and write.

Terrell BRYANT's son, Marcus, was the first one buried
in the Marcus Hill Graveyard, and that how the church and
graveyard got their names. I have heard that his first wife,
Clausa, is buried in the HARDIN family graveyard. There
are doubtless others there, but she isthe only one that | know
about. His second wife was a LAVINDER, Jane MAT-
THEWS was his third and Matt SPENCER was his fourth.
All these are buried at Marcus Hill.

I examined a lot of his old papers in 1971. Among them is
his certificate of appointment as justice of the peace for
Hardin township in 1866 It’s signed by Powell CLAYTON
and has the oath of allegiance written in with red ink. I found
his certificate of appointment as postmaster at Enola in 1886.
I found his certificate to practice medicine, and that’s why
he moved to Enola. I found a deed for the land just south of
the Marcus Hill Church in which my great grandfather, A.
G. Ingram, sold to my wife’s great grandfather, Terrell R.
BRYANT. This deed is dated 1874 and made by Steven E.
LAMAR. | saw from this deed that both my great grandpar-
ents on the INGRAM side could read and write. Many of his
early deed are signed by his or her mark. He was quite a
community leader. He was their doctor for many years, a
druggist and merchant, a postmaster on two occasions, and
a justice of the peace for many years. He is probably the
cause of my father being a doctor and L. T. and Steve
LASLEY being merchants.

Reuben SANDERS 37, and his wife Susan 21, and children
Hiram 12, John 11, and Mary 5, settled just east of Mt.
Vemon in 1857. Rebuen SANDERS was bom in South
Carolina in 1819, and his father was Jonathan SANDERS.
Reuben SANDERS came to Mt. Vemon from Morgan
County Alabama. He married Lucinda MATHERSON
September 10, 1839 and Margaret PULLEN October 20,
1843. She was probably the mother of the above children.
Hiram SANDERS married Adeline BRADY in 1866 and
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she died before 1870. He then married Sarah Ann
HEFFINGTON, a daughter of Thomas. John SANDERS
married Mary E. HARRISON December 24, 1873. She
was a daughter of Dr. R. T, HARRISON of Mt. Vemon.
He moved to Conway and was an early city official and
druggist there. John SANDERS later marmed Lucinda
BRYANT, and she was the mother of his children.

In 1858 Steven E. LAMAR 23 from Alabama, and his wife
Florina BRYANT (sister of Terrell) 27 from South Caro-
lina, came to Enola from Mississippi and settled three
fourths of a mile north east of Enola, on the Bud BRYANT
place. Joseph MILAM from Alabama came here with the
LAMARs and married Steve LAMAR’s sister. Joseph
MILAM was papas first patient when he began the practice
of medicine in 1906. Steve LAMAR was the first postmas-
ter at Enola in 1879. Steve LASLEY, Steve ELLIS, Ellis
LASLEY and Ellis HAILEY are all named for Uncle
Steve LAMAR.

Francis Marion LASLEY 18, from Soddy, Tennessee, and
his wife Frances Marsena BRYANT 16, settled about a
half a mile east of Marcus Hill in 1874, They were married
at Dr. Terrell BRYANT’s house on May 21, 1874 by Uncle
Steve LAMAR. She is buried near Sheridan.. He is buried
at Marcus Hill. They were my wife’s grandparents. Both her
grandfathers died the same day.

Papa told me that the first church and school, near Marcus
Hill, was one half mile south of Dr. Terrell BRYANTSs
house on the west side of the road just north of where Barn
SANDERS lived when I was a child. It was next at the
southwest comer of Grandma INGRAM’s field.

Some of the early doctors around Enola were: Dr. Anthony
HINKLE, Dr. HARRISON, and POWERS at Mr. Ver-
non, Dr. Terrell BRYANT at Marcus Hill and Enola, and
soon to follow were Dr. Jess REYNOLDS, who lived on
theTom GRIMES place, Dr. OWNS lived just south of
Uncle Dave SMITH, Dr. BENNETT lived 100 yards east
of town, Dr. PASCAL lived where the school house now
stands, and Dr. Fred BROWN lived on the Steve LASLEY
place.

Some of these doctors were educated in medicine and some
just decided to be a doctor and paid their license fees. That's
all you had to do in those days. I found one of Dr. Terrell
BRYANTs prescriptions for liniment in L. T. LASLEY"s
old trunk in 1971. He was L. T.’s grandfather. Here 1t 1s:
quart of apple vinegar, 1 oz oil of cedar, 1 oz oil of winter-
green, 1 oz oil of spook, |1 oz spints of camphor, 1 oz

turpentine, and 1 oz o1l of pole cat. It was like Brylcream-a
little dab would do you.

Some of'the folks who lived around Enola in the 1880s were:
Steve LAMAR, Johnny CUMMINGS, Jim
REYNOLDS, Jess REYNOLDS, Jim REYNOLDS, Jr.,
Dr. Jess REYNOLDS, Jimmie CUNNNINGHAM, Bell
MARTIN, Jeff MIDDLETON, the MUNGERS, Colonel
HARPER, Sam MORRIS, Sam JOSLIN, the SAMON's,
the SHOCKs, the MATTHEWS, Belton SETZLER,
David & Jonathan HAILEY, John AUSTIN, Joseph &
George DALTON, Usley SMITH, A. A. WILSON, Dr.
Terrell BRYANT, Willis GUNTER, Jap & Jack
STARR, Man SMITH, Anthony BRADY, Tom
GRIMES, Spanker MC GLONE and the BAILEYs. Lots
of these I never heard of and many I have left out.

Early merchants at Enola were: Jimmy CUNNINGHAM,
a Mr. HAINES who ran the Grange Store, Dr. Terrell
BRYANT and Quenton BRYANT ran a drug store, and
Jimmy REYNOLDS, Jr. ran a general store. The Grange
Store seems to have been the uniting force and the main thing
that made it a town. Mrs. Georgia HARPER Graham said
that it was already a small village when she moved her in
1881. Frank BAILEY's father was running a gin at Enola
at that time. It was later run by Belton SETZLER and then
by Sam JOSLIN. George SHOCK ran a gin about two
miles east of Cross Roads about this same time.

Southern soldiers around Enola were: William & Ambrose
HARDIN; Bob & Roe BRADY at Naylor; Dr. Terrell
BRYANT; James & Wes BRADY; Lish BAILEY's
grandfather; and one or two of the MABRYs. Terrell R.
BRYANT was a Lt. in the southem army.

Postmasters at Enola have been: Steven E. LAMAR, 1879,
John ALLEN, 1883 (I know nothing about him or who he
was); Jonathan HAILEY, 1883; Dr. Terrell BRYANT,
1886; J. H. REYNOLDS, Jr. 1887; J. H. CUNNING-
HAM, 1887, Dr. Terrell BRYANT, 1889, Wm. P. BRY-
ANT, 1889; J. H. CUNNINGHAM, 1895; Belton
SETZLER, 1897; J. Walter HENRY, 1910; L. B.
SETZLER, 1910; J. H. CUNNINGHAM, 1914; L. B.
SETZLER, 1919 to 1943; and Ruth SETZLER Bailey
1943 to 1972. Some member of the Setzler family has been
postmaster at Enola for more than 70 of the 92 years that |
has been a post office. Evidently their service has been quite
satisfactory.

Lots of early settlers around Enola paid no taxes at all for 15
or 20 years. These men paid these amounts in these years
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and its is all they did pay. This is from the official Conway
county tax records. In 1840, Granville & Tillman HOGUE
paid $.50 poll taxes. In 1841 Coney BRADY paid $4.20.
In 1842 Sampson ADKISSON paid $ 97, Francis Patrick
HENRY paid $.75, and Richard MIDDLETON paid
$1.05.In 1843 David, Henry, & Stephen HEFFINGTON,
Elijah & Gibson HOGUE, G. W. STARR and W. TER-
RELL each paid $.50 poll taxes. In 1845 Dr. Anthony
HINKLE paid $.86, and Thomas HEFFINGTON paid
$.90. And that’s all they paid for these years.

MEMBERS’ CHARTS

MEMBER #492

11060 S. Hawkwood Dr

Sandy UT 84094

Name: ROTTIGNI, Cheri Lyn

Birth: 05/09/1951, Downey CA

Spouse: GENTILE, Lawrence Joseph

Birth: 09/29/1945, Chicago, IL

Marriage: 01/01/1981, Reno NV, she is medical assistant;
he is accountant.

I am descendant of Jesse J TERRELL

1. I am dau of Nino Anthony ROTTIGNI bom on
01/31/1922 at Downey CA; and his spouse: Audrey Col-
leen GOOD bom on 04/13/1932 at Paramount CA, died at
Bellflower, CA on 09/03/1992; married at Amaheim CA.
He is laborer, no occupation shown for her.

2. The said Audrey Colleen GOOD was the child of Jody
Earl GOOD bom on 09/26/1906 at Texana OK; died at
Selma CA on 03/23/93 and his spouse: Birtie Lorraine
HOOPER bom on 10/12/1908 at Caddow Mills TX, died
at Sacramento CA on 05/23/1994; married on 07/09/1930
at Achille OK. Both were farmers

3. The said Birtie Lorraine HOOPER was the child of
Thomas Parker HOOPER bom on 08/21/1880 at AL; died
at Bellflower CA on 10/17/1960 and his spouse: Maude
Evelyn TERRELL bom on 01/25/1890 at Caddow Mills
TX, died at Orcutt CA on 05/17/1977; married on
09/07/1907 at Caddow Mills, TX. They were farmers.

4. The said Maude Evelyn TERRELL was the child of
Allen Brinsfield TERRELL bom on 03/14/1858 at Gun-
tersville, AL; died at TX on 12/17/1933 and his spouse:
Margaret Isabell BERRY bom on 01/01/1859 at Cedar
Ridge AL, died at Hunt Co. TX on 07/19/1922; married on
06/27/1858 at Marshall county AL. They were farmers.

5. The said Allen Brinsfield TERRELL was the child of
Jesse J. TERRELL bom cal821 at VA; died at AL on
unknown date and his spouse: Martha TERRELL bom
cal825 at NC, died at AL on unknown date; marnied on
03/27/1851 at Marshall Co. AL. They were farmers

REFERENCES:
None Listed.

MEMBER # 499

1203 Pebble Creek Dr

Euless TX 76040-5947

email: Jharvl203@aol com

Name: WYNNE, Mary Jane

Birth: 12/25/1933, Carlysle (Price), Rusk, TX

Spouse: HARVEY, Charles Vincent

Birth: 12/06/1929, Joplin, Jasper, MO

Marmage: 06/04/1952, West Pomt, Orange NY; both are
retired; he was engineer, she was office manager.

I am descendant of Timothy TERRELL

1. Tam dau of Glen Wilbourn WYNNE born on 03/22/1911
at Noble, Sabine, LA; died at Tyler, Smith, TX on
04/15/1995 and his spouse: Maudie Marie NEWMAN
bom on 05/10/1910 at Point, Rains, TX; married on
07/14/1932 at Shreveport, Caddo, LA. He was in oil busi-
ness; she is homemaker. Glen died of stroke and had sur-
vived cancer. Glen had 3 daughters.

2. The said Glen Wilbourn WYNNE was the child of
Wilbourn “Will” Wiley WYNNE, Jr. born on 08/25/1883
at Mansfield, DeSoto, LA; died at Tumertown, Rusk TX on
04/01/1950 and his spouse: Mary Lou EDWARDS bom
on 01/03/1893 at Noble, Sabine, LA, died at Tyler, Smith,
TX on 08/06/1969; married on 10/20/1908 at Center,
Shelby, TX. He was in oil business; she was homemaker.
Will & Mary Lou had 3 daughters and 4 sons. Both died of
cancer.

Will & Mary Lou’s mothers were sisters, daughters of
Josiah Martin TERRELL. Her mother was Louisa
Lenora TERRELL Edwards. Peter Davis WYNNE, 11
father of Wilbourn Wiley WYNNE, Sr.m(2). Mary Eliza-
beth “Molly” TERRELL, sister of the other two TER-
RELL women,

3. The said Wilbourn “Will” Wiley WYNNE, Jr.was the
child of Wilbourn Wiley WYNNE, Sr.bom on 08/06/1854
at Mansfield, DeSoto, LA; died at Noble, Sabine, LA on
01/12/1923 and his spouse: Nancy Isobell Emelie TER-
RELL born on 10/10/1855 at Mansfield, DeSoto, TX, died
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at Noble, Sabine, LA on 02/07/1929: married on 12/25/1875
at Mansfield, DeSoto, LA. He was merchant/postmaster;
she was homemaker.

4. The said Nancy Isobell Emelie TERRELL was the child
of Josiah Martin TERRELL bom on 02/14/1818 at Amite
Co, MS; died at Mansfield, DeSoto, LA on 09/20/1883 and
his spouse: Ann MORGAN bom on 12/23/1927 at Pike Co

MS, died at Mansfield, DeSoto, LA on 07/27/1857; marnied
on 1844 at MS. He was planter; she was homemaker,
daughter of Benjamin MORGAN. Josiah had 3 daus. & 2
sons. He served in Confederate Army 1862; movbed to AR
in 1861 then back to LA where he remained until death.

5. The said Josiah Martin TERRELL was the child of
Hiram TERRELL bom on 04/14/1879 at Franklin Co. GA;
died at Pike co. MS on Unlisted and his spouse: Isobell
GLASS bom on 12/15/1796 at NC, died at TX on
09/24/1869; married on 12/24/1812 at Amite co. MS. He
was planter and MS State Senator; she was homemaker.
Hiram had 9 sons & 3 daughters per obit of son James
Landrum TERRELL. Isobell moved to TX where she
died.

6. The said Hiram TERRELL was the child of Moses
TERRELL bom on cal761 at Orange co. NC; died at Amite
co. MS on 02/21/1831 (will) and his spouse: N. C. Nancy
MARTIN dau. Zachariah & Rebecca MARTIN.

7. The said Moses TERRELL was the child of Timothy
TERRELL bom on 1705-10 at unlisted; died at Orange Co.
NC on 02/01/1763 and his spouse: Mary MARTIN bom
on unlisted at VA, died at Unlistted on Unlisted; married on
1731 at Orange Co. NC.

REFERENCES:

Ist. Gen. Interview, birth, marriage records, census,
Bible records

2nd. Gen. Interviews, birth, marriage records, census,
Bible records

3rd. Gen. Interviews with family; birth, marraige, Bible
records; Tombstone, Densus, Deed & Probate

4th. Gen. Previous sources; Marriage & Death notices
from the Magnolia Gazette

5th. Gen. Previous sources; deeds, wills, DICKEN’s 7er-
rell Genealogy; J R. DODD Hunting for Bears

6th. Gen. DICKEN’s 7errell Genealogy

7th. Gen. DICKEN’s Terrell Genealogy

MEMBER #507
1520 Hideaway Ct.
Baton Rouge LA 70806

Name: WATSON, Mary E. “Bunny”

Birth: 12/08/1934, Corsicana, TX

Spouse (1): WILKS, Wm. W. WILKS

Birth: 01/26/1930, Ft. Worth TX; died 02/04/1963, Dallas
TX

Marnage: 06/14/1954, Corsicana TX; he was M. D.
Spouse (2): HEROMAN, Fred T.

Birth: 05/24/1919, Baton Rouge, LA; hortaculturist
Marriage: 10/18/1969, Baton Rouge, LA. She is social
worker.

I am descendant of Charlotte TERRELL

1. I am dau of Harold B. WATSON bom on 02/02/1904 at
Athens, TX; died at Corsicana, TX on 04/18/1984 and his
spouse: Josephine YOUNG bom on 11/25/1904 at Corsi-
cana TX, died at Corsicana, TX on 04/13/1997; married on
11/27/1923 at Athens, TX. He was carpenter; she was house-
wife,

2. The said Josephine YOUNG was the child of Augustus
P. YOUNG bom on 02/28/1868 at Camden, AL; died at
Corsicana TX on 02/03/1937 and his spouse: Mary Mar-
shall BOWLES bom on 06/21/1878 at Austin, TX, died at
Corsicana, TX on 06/12/1957; married on 12/21/1902 at
Austin, TX. He operated livery stable; she was housewife.

3. The said Mary Marshall BOWLES was the child of
John Solomon BOWLES bom on 09/13/1842 at Houston,
TX; died at Austin TX on 12/04/1911 and his spouse:
Marcella HULING born on 02/18/1848 at Austin, TX, died
at Austin, TX on 08/05/1925; married on 12/09/1868 at
Austin, TX. He worked for TX House of Reps; she was
housewife.

4. The said Marcella HULING was the child of Marcus
HULING bom on 03/15/1800 at VA; died at Unlisted on
unlisted and his spouse: Charlotte TERRELL bom on
01/27/1816 at Massachusetts, died at Austin, TX on
05/31/1895; married on 02/18/1835 at Natchez MS.

5. The said Charlotte TERRELL was the child of Un-
known TERRELL.

REFERENCES:

Ist. Gen. TX Bureau of Vital Stastics; Henderson Co. TX
clerk of court records; personal knowledge

2nd. Gen. Personal knowledge; grave stones in Oakwood
Cemetery, Corsicana TX

3rd. Gen. Travis Co. TX clerk of court records; grave
stones in Oakwood Cemetery, Austin, TX (There is Oak-
wood cemetery in both town and this is correct
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4th, Gen. Grave stones, Oakwood Cemetery, Austin, TX;
marriage records Natchez, MS.

MEMBER #509

430 Sierra Ave

Mountain View CA 94041

Name: JOHNSON, Scott

Birth: 05/06/1967, Houston TX

Spouse: YEN, Julie

Birth: 04/25/1968, Dayton OH

Marmiage: 08/30/1997, Stanford CA. Both are engineers.

I am descendant of Robert TERRILL

1. I am son of William Walton JOHNSON, Jr. bom on
01/14/1928 at Houston, TX; and his spouse: Mary Louise
KIRKWOOD bom on 09/04/1930 at New York, NY; mar-
ried on 12/26/1960 at New York, NY. He is businesman,
she 1s nurse.

2. The said William Walton JOHNSON Jr.was the child
of William Walton JOHNSON Sr. born on 09/28/1895 at
Steinmetz MO, died at Houston TX on 12/11/1973 and his
spouse: Mary Evelyn HENDERSON bom on 12/09/1891
at Norwich, CT, died at Houston TX on 02/07/1977; married
on 10/10/1923 at Chicago, IL. He was chemical engineer;
she was librarian.

3. The said William Walton JOHNSON Sr.was the child
of Major Lanius JOHNSON bom on 12/05/1851 at
Fayette MO, died at Fayette MO on 06/02/1925 and his
spouse: Eliz. Lee WALTON bom on 08/04/1866 at Arm-
strong MO, died at MO on 1942; married on 05/17/1892 at
MO. He was farmer, she was volunteer.

4. The said Eliz. Lee WALTON was the child of Thomas
William WALTON bom on 02/11/1834 at Prince Edward
Co. VA; died at Ammstrong MO on 09/30/1880 and his
spouse: Stella Amelia TERRILL bom on 06/05/1851 at
Roanoke, MO, died at Roanoke, MO on 09/27/1877; mar-
ried on 10/19/1865 at Terrell, TX. He was capt. in Confed-
erate Army, carpenter; she was artist, educator.

5. The said Stella Amelia TERRILL was the child of
Joshua Willis TERRILL bom on 08/21/1821 at Boone co.
KY; died at Unlisted on 1888 and his spouse: Matilda Ann
WALTON born on 08/04/1823 at unlisted, died at unlisted
on 12/10/1888; married on 10/08/1840 at Georgetown, KY.
He was doctor, farmer, preacher; she was philanthropist.

6. The said Joshua Willis TERRILL was the child of John
TERRILL bom on 02/13/1763 at unlisted; died at Unlisted

on 07/23/1856 and his spouse: Rebecca CORNELIUS;
married on 1789 at Unlisted.

7. The said John TERRILL was the child of Edmund
TERRILL bom on 03/21/1740 at VA died at Culpeper co.
VA on 1784 and his spouse: Margaret WILLIS bom on
02/25/1741 at unlisted, died at Unlisted on 1812; married on
11/26/1760 at unlisted.

8. The said Edmund TERRILL was the child of Robert
TERRILL and his spouse: Elizabeth FOSTER.

REFERENCES:

Ist. Gen. self

2nd. Gen. Self & father

3rd. Gen. father; autobiography of Major JOHNSON
4th. Gen. Records of my cousin, Joanne JOHNSON
Jones

5th. Gen. Records of my cousin, Joanne JOHNSON
Jones; autobiography of Major JOHNSON

6th. Gen. Joanne JONES

7th. Gen. from some WALTON surname genealogy
sources.

8th. Gen. None listed. MEMBER #510

537 N Fountain

Wichita KS 67208

Name: GROW, Gwendolyn

Birth: 11/20/1917, Philadelphia, PA

Spouse: SEEFELD, Donald F.

Birth: 01/19/1917, Zurich, KS

Marriage: 02/04/1940, Arkansas City, KS. She is housewife
and knit shop owner; he is salesman.

I am descendant of Jured TERRIL

1. I am dau of Clyde L. GROW bomn on 03/13/1896 at
Topeka, KS; died at Las Cruces, NM on 03/14/1926 and his
spouse: Ruth Holmes MAY bom on 07/11/1897 at Gravel
Switch, K, died at Wichita, KS on 03/14/1993; married on
1917 at Wilmington, DE. He was supt. of dam in NM; she
was housewife and secretary.

2. The said Clyde L. GROW was the child of David C.
GROW bom on 11/04/1854 at Waashington Co. IN; died
at Las Cruces, NM on 12/09/1948 and his spouse: Mary E.
GROSHONG bom on 05/26/1852 at Jefferson co. KS, died
at Las Cruces, NM on 08/31/1941; married on 02/20/1881
at Topeka, KS. He was farmer; she was housewife.

3. The said Mary E. GROSHONG was the child of Darius
B. GROSHONG bom on 06/09/1840 at Grant co. WI; died
at Jeffeson co. KS on 05/10/1914 and his spouse: Hulda A.
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MARTIN bom on 11//1841 at Platt Co. MO, died at Jeffer-
son co. KS on 11/28/1907; marned on 09/22/1859 at Jack-
son co. KS. He was farmer; she was housewife.

4. The said Hulda A. MARTIN was the child of George
MARTIN bom on 1810 at Ohio, Hardy co. WV, died at
Jackson Co KS on 08/25/1875 and his spouse: Rebecca
DRAIS bomn on unlisted at Hardy Co. WV, died at Platt Co.
MO on 1844; married on 02/15/1835 at Hardy Co. WV. He
was farmer, she was housewife.

5. The said George MARTIN was the child of Christopher
MARTIN born on unlisted at GERMANY; died at Hardy
co. WV on 04/11/1820 (will proved) and his first spouse:
Elizabeth TERRELL? bom on unlisted at unlisted, died at
unlisted on unlisted; married on unhisted at unlisted. He was
farmer. After his first wife died, he m. Martha JAMES:
info from descendants of Martha and from census records
& court records. We think he had 3 children by the first wife.

6. The said Elizabeth TERRELL? was the child of Daniel
TERRELL? and his spouse: Jane UNLISTED.

7. The said Daniel TERRELL?was the child of Jured
TERILL and his spouse: Sarah UNLISTED.

REFERENCES:

Ist. Gen. Family records; court records

2nd. Gen. Family records; court records

3rd. Gen. Family records; court records

4th. Gen. Family records; court records; Family mem-
bers say that George’s middle name was Terrill. He
named a son James Terrill MARTIN

5th. Gen. Will of Daniel TERRELL of Ohio Co. WV,
1844, names heir, Elizabeth MARTIN

6th. Gen. will of Jured TERRIL in Ohio Co. W. VA
August, 1799

MEMBER #513

910 Dale

San Marcos, TX 78666

Name: BUTLER, V. Ann

Birth: 10/02/1940, San Marcos, TX

Spouse: BLACKBURN, Robert Owen

Birth: 11/14/1940, Edgerton MO

Marriage: 11/25/1970, Austin TX. He is electronics techni-
cian & USAF retired; she is secretary.

I am descendant of Robert TERRELL/TYRRELL

1. I am dau of Fred W. BUTLER Jr. bom on 04/01/1914
at San Marcos, TX; died at San Marcos, TX on 01/26/1993
and his spouse: Vedith Edna BELVER bom on 07/20/1914

at Sour Lake TX; marned on 12/09/1933 at San Marcos, TX
He was employed by United Gas Pipe Line; she was home-
maker.

2. The said Fred W. BUTLER Jr.was the child of Fred W.
BUTLER Sr. bom on 10/10/1881 at Seguin (Mill Creek)
TX; died at San Marcos TX on 01/11/1960 and his spouse:
Delia TERRELL bom on 08/13/1886 at Seguin, TX, died
at San Marcos, TX on 03/09/1980; married on 11/25/1903
at Seguin TX (Mill Creek Church). He was carpenter; she
was housewife.

3. The said Delia TERRELL was the child of John Tyler
TERRELL bom on 02/18/1845 at Colorado Co. TX; died
at San Marcos TX on 05/28/1920 and his spouse: Elizabeth
Alice DARDEN bom on 06/04/1846 at Gonzales, Gonzales
co, TX, died at Seguin, TX on 11/27/1914; married on 1866
at Unlisted. He was grocer/farmer; she was homemaker.

4. The said John Tyler TERRELL was the child of
Thomas Henry TERRELL bom on 03/23/1808 at Wilkes
Co GA, died at Seguin, TX on 06/11/1873 and his spouse:
Maria L. DUGGAN bom on 06/04/1818 at GA, died at
Seguin, TX on 10/04/1872; married on 04/28/183 at Colo-
rado Co. TX. He was grocer/farmer; she was housewife.

5. The said Thomas Henry TERRELL was the child of
Peter Buford TERRELL bom on 10/24/1764 at Hanover
Co. VA, died at Wilkes Co GA on 09/12/1821 and his
spouse: Penelope JONES bom on 11/09/1776 at VA, died
at Washington, GA on 1827; married on 11/21/1795 at
unlisted location. He was a lawyer; she was a homemaker.

6. The said Peter Buford TERRELL was the child of
William TERRELL bom on 02/11/1732 at Caroline Co.
VA; died at Wilkes Co. GA on 08/05/1812 and his spouse:
Frances WINGFIELD bom on 12/30/1736 at Hanover co
VA, died at Wilkes co. GA on 01/20/1802; married on
cal756 at Hanover co. VA. He was landowner, tobacco
inspector, Justice of the Peace; she was homemaker.

7. The said William TERRELL was the child of Joel
TERRELL, Sr bom on 1692-95 at New Kent co. VA; died
at Hanover co. VA on 1758 and his spouse: Sarah OX-
FORD bormn on 1700-02 at Caroline co. VA, died at Hanover
co. VA on unlisted; mamed on 1716-18 at VA. He was
landowner/planter; she was homemaker.

8. The said Joel TERRELL, Sr was the child of William
TERRELL bom on 1659-60 at New Kent co. VA; died at
Hanover co. VA on cal755 and his spouse: Susannah
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WATERS,; married on cal689-90 at Hanover co. VA. He
was land owner/planter; she was homemaker.

9 The said William TERRELL was the child of Rich-
mond TERRELL bapt. on 10/17/1624 at St. Giles Parish,
Reading ENGLAND; died at Hanover Co. VA on cal683
and his spouse: Elizabeth UNLISTED bom on cal641;
marmed on cal 645 at unlisted.

10, The said Richmond TERRELL was the child of
Robert TYRRELL bapt. on 02/11/1620 at unlisted; died at
Reading, ENGLAND on 1643 and his spouse: Jane BALD-
WIN; married on 06/29/1617 at St. Giles Parish, Reading
ENGLAND

REFERENCES:

Ist. Gen. family records; BUTLER family Bible

2nd. Gen. family records; BUTLER family Bible

3rd. Gen. family records; The San Geronimo Cemetery,
Seguin, TX

4th. Gen. family records; The San Geronimo Cemetery,
Seguin, TX

5th. Gen. family records; 7errell Genealogy by Emma
DICKEN

6th. Gen. — 10th. Gen. Terrell Genealogy

MEMBER #516

13819 Hwy C

Rayville MO 64084

Name: BANNING, Aletha Allene

Birth: 07/19/1933, Excelsior Springs, MO

Spouse: CROWLEY, Don D.

Birth: 06/21/1930, Ray co. MO

Marnage: 10/21/1950, Eureka Springs, AR. She is retired
postmaster; he is minister. | am descendant of Samuel
TERRELL

1. I am dau of John Edward BANNING bom on
08/25/1902 at Lingo, Linn co. MO, died at Ex. Spgs., Clay
Co. MO on 01/22/1968 and his spouse: Zoe Lee TERRELL
bom on 12/08/1906 at Marceline, Linn co. MO, died at Ex.
Sprgs, Clay co. MO on 02/12/1976; married on 10/01/1925
at Linn co. MO. He was a miner and laborer, she was
homemaker.

2. The said Zoe Lee TERRELL was the child of James
Tuttle TERRELL bom on cal871 at unlisted; died at
Wichita, KS on 05/01/1912 and his spouse: Josie Max
TOMLINSON bom on 07/04/1888 at Linn co. MO, died at
Marceline, Linn co. MO on 02/01/1939; married on
02/12/1909 at Linn co. MO. He was railroad worker.

3. The said James Tuttle TERRELL was the child of
Samuel TERRELL bom on unlisted at unlisted; died at
unlisted on unlisted and his spouse: Esther BAGLEY bom
on unlisted at Bradford co. PA, died at unlisted on unlisted,
married on 11/01/1866 at Putnam co. MO.

4. The said Samuel TERRELL was the child of unlisted.

REFERENCES:

Ist. Gen. personal knowledge

2nd. Gen. Wichita Daily Eagle 05/02/1912; The Mar-
celine News 02/03/1912

3rd. Gen. Putnam co. MO marriage records (name mis-
spelled on marriage record, appears as FENEL); death
certificate of brother, Charles Washington TERRELL

MEMBER #523

3944 Canfield Ave

Boise, ID 83706

email: anderp@nivgl.sd01 k12.1d us
Name: ANDERSON, Paul Carl

Birth: 02/17/1948, San Francisco, SF, CA
Spouse: BELNAP, Irene

Birth: 05/27/1952, Boise, Ada, ID
Marriage: 10/12/1985, Boise, Ada, ID

I am descendant of Richmond TERRELL

1. 1am son of Virginia Ann DUFFICY bom on 02/16/1915
at Anaconda, Deer Lodge, Montana; died at Daly City, San
Mateo, CA on 03/04/1961 and her 2nd. spouse: Vern Carl
ANDERSON bom on 08/05/1920 at Salt Lake City, Salt
Lake, UT, died at Aptos, Santa Cruz, CA on 03/27/1980;
married on 01/26/1946 at Oakland, Alemeda, CA.

2. The said Virginia Ann DUFFICY was the child of Nellie
Napa MC CORMICK bom on 10/16/1883 at St. Helena,
Napa, CA; died at San Francisco, San Francisco, CA on
10/25/1946 and her spouse: Timothy Joseph DUFFICY
bom on 09/26/1878 at Lisduff, Roscomman, IRELAND,
died at San Francisco, S.F., CA on 02/24/1952; married on
06/26/1909 at Oakland, Alameda, CA.

3. The said Nellie Napa MC CORMICK was the child of
William Newton MC CORMICK bom on 12/23/1845
Little Rock, Pulaski, AR; died at Napa, Napa, CA on
10/13/1923 and his spouse: Nancy Jane YORK bom on
08/12/1852 at St. Helena, Napa, CA, died at Napa, Napa,
CA on 02/20/1937, married on 09/28/1870 at St. Helena,
Napa, CA.

4 The said William Newton MC CORMICK was the child
of Margaret M. TERRELL bom on 10/27/1819 at Point
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Lick, Garrard, K Y, died at Unknnown on unknown and her
spouse: William J. MC CORMICK bom on 1815 at KY,
died at Franklin, Sacramento, CA on 1854; mamed on
03/10/1836 at Philadelphia, Manon, MO.

5. The said Margaret M. TERRELL was the child of John
TERRELL bom on 1782 at Culpeper co. VA, died at
Marion co. MO on 10/04/1844 and his spouse: Sarah
“Sally” HENDERSON born on 02/04/1787 at Culpeper co.
VA, died at Marion co. MO on 10/25/1854; married on
unknown date & location.

6. The said John TERRELL was the child of Henry
TERRELL bom on 12/24/1753 at Culpeper co. VA, died
at Garrard co. KY on 1823 and his 2nd spouse: Martha
ALEXANDER bom on 1760 at Culpeper co. VA, died at
unknown on unknown; married on 1781 in VA.

7. The said Henry TERRELL was the child of Robert
TERRELL, Jr.bom on 1725 at New Kent co. VA; died at
Boone’s Road, Lincoln, KY on 1800 and his spouse: Judith
TOWLES bom on 04/23/1735 at Culpeper co. VA, died at
Orange co. VA on 1786; married on 1750 at Orange co. VA.

Editor's Note: If more than one sheet was sent, the second
became separated and is lost. However, the family is well
detailed in TERRELL GENEALOGY by Emma DICKEN
from this point back to the immigrants. DFB

Non-member, 05/05/99, would like to hear from and
share info with others who share this lineage

248 Crystal Valley Dr

Cibolo, TX 78108

Name: ABEL, Elaine

Birth: 03/02/1953, Eglin AFB, FL

Spouse: MUSICK, Terry Lynn

Birth: 09/26/1950, San Antonio, TX

Marriage: 11/24/1971, San Antonio, TX. She is teacher’s
aide; he is mechanic/salesman.

I am descendant of Richmond TERRELL

1. I am dau of J. N. ABEL born on 09/14/1922 at Hominy,
OK; and his spouse: Juanita Irene TYER bom on
09/25/1916 at Jenks, OK; married on 09/07/1946 at Tulas,
OK. He is in USAF.

2. The said J. N. ABEL was the child of Ruby Esther
DOOLEY bom on 07/11/1894 at Indian Terntory, OK; died
at Tulsa OK on 08/18/1904 and her spouse: Martin Madi-
son ABEL bom on 11/25/1894 at

Anna, TX, died at Pryor, OK on 05/15/1974; marned on
12/25/1921 at Wagoner, OK. He was a farmer.

3. The said Ruby Esther DOOLEY was the child of Mar-
garet Jane PHARISS bom on 08/04/1862 at Samona, CA;
died at Pryor, OK on 01/09/1941 and her spouse: Nicholas
DOOLEY bom on 11/27/1863 at Prescott, CANADA, died
at Pryor, OK on 02/01/1944; married on 03/17/1888 at San
Francisco, CA. He was a farmer.

4. The said Margaret Jane PHARISS was the child of
Agnes Ann GORE bom on 04/01/1827 at GA; died at
Claremore, OK on 01/02/1892 and her 2nd. spouse: Pleas-
ant Holloman PHARISS bom on 07/11/1820 at TN, died
at Claremont, OK on 01/02/1892; marnied on 01/04/1850 at
unlisted. Agnes m (1) Robert LOMBARD. Pleasant m (1).
Nancy ALEXANDER.

5. The said Agnes Ann GORE was the child of Samuel
Bledsoe GORE bom on unlisted at unlisted; died at TX? on
1857 and his spouse: Margaret DOWNIN Nellums bom
on 04/01/1827 at GA, died at unlisted on 1879; marriage not
listed. Margaret m(1). Archibald NELLUMS.

6. The said Samuel Bledsoe GORE was the child of Agnes
BLEDSOE bom on 1768 at Wake Co. NC; died at unlisted
on unlisted and her spouse: Thomas GORE bom on 1760
at unlisted; married on 09/18/1786 at Wake co. NC. Agnes
was Cherokee Indian and went on 7rail of Tears. Thomas
was taken prisoner at battle of Ft. McIntosh.

7. The said Agnes BLEDSOE was the child of Lohammer
TERRELL bom on 01/18/1731 at Caroline Co. VA, died
at Wake Co. NC on 11/01/1810 and her spouse: Jacob
BLEDSOE bom on 1724 at Spotsylvania co. VA, died at
Wake Co. NC on 05/01/1817; marmed on 1748 at Granville
co. NC.

8. The said Lohammer TERRELL was the child of John
TERRELL bom on 1707 at Kent co. VA, died at Granville
co. NC on 1785 and his consort; Elizabeth HARRISON.
John & Elizabeth never married. John was disowned by the
Quaker church for living with Elizabeth.

9. The said John TERRELL was the child of William
TERRELL bom on 1660 at New Kent co. VA, died at
Hanover co. VA on 1743 and his spouse: Susannah WA-
TERS bom on 1670 at unlisted, died at unlisted after 1726,
married on 1689 at New Kent co. VA.

10. The said William TERRELL was the child of Rich-
mond TERRELL bom on 1624 at Reading ENGLAND
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and his spouse: Elizabeth UNLISTED. Immigrant to VA
1856,

REFERENCES:

Ist. Gen. ABEL birth & marriage certificates

2nd. Gen. J. N. ABEL

3rd. Gen. J. N. ABEL, Ruby ABEL death certs., Indian
records

4th. Gen. J. N. ABEL, Ruby ABEL death certs., Indian
records

5th. Gen. Indian Records

6th. Gen. Indian Records; LDS marriages

7th. Gen. None

8th. Gen. Quaker Book, VA

Oth. Gen. Ency American Quaker Genealogy; Tidewater
VA Families

10th. Gen. None

TREEMAKER CD CONTROVERSY

The web is rife with conflicting opinions about the value of
Family Treemaker CDs. Here aré just 2 examples. What has
your experience been?

Forthose of you that do NOT understand it. The Family Tree
Maker Cd’s are essentially worthless. What little I and
others I know have found on them has been either incorrect
or the information cannot be substantiated. Jack F. Shotts,
Sr.; phoneman@ro.com

I have found them very helpful. You can coritact the person
who submitted the information. To get get the name and
address of the submitter, click here
http://www.familytreemaker.com/cgi-bin/subinfo.cgi
Maker's Contributor Info. You will receive the information
in 24-48 hours. Phyllis PmpGenie@aol.com

- e RO
0% » 5 S [ A
% - b ot
-
w N
» 4

The Proven; The Probable; The Possible;
and the Mythological from Europe

THE EARLY TYRRELS OF HERON IN
EAST HERNDON; PART THREE

By G. Andrew Moriarty, AM,LLB FSA
Communicated by the Committee on English and Foreign
Research

Submitted by Mr. James M. Allen, Jr.

Continued from page last issue

Will of Edward Tyrrel of Downham

(Register Henry Chicle, vol. 1, p. 628, Cant. & York Pub.,
vol 42) [Emphasis added, broken into paragraphs for easier
reading, ]

The will of Edward TYRELL squyer, the elder, dwelling
at Downham, co. Essex, 10 October, 21 Henry VI (1442).

Bequeathed his soul to the Virgin and all the Saints of
Heaven. Bequests of personalty to servants and friends. To
be buried in the church of the Freres of Chelmsford in the
chapel I have made there in the nave.

To the church at Downham for tithes forgotten 40/. To poor
men at my obit 10 marks.

To servant Eleanor PRESTON 10 marks at marriage, if she
be with me at the time of my death.

To every yeoman of mine and every woman servant in my
service at the time of my death, who have been with me for
3 years previously thereto, 26/8 each. To such as have served
me 7 years 40/. To every groom in my service for 3 years at
the time of my death 12/4 and for those in my service 7 years
20/ each.

To William HAULTE, squyer, one of the executors, my
testament, a pair of sheets of Reyns and another pair of
Holland cloth. To Peryn FRENSSHMANA, my servant,
40/. To every yeoman and woman servant who has served
me for two years before my death 6/8 and to every groom
of like service, 3/4.

To my sonEdward, bed linen at age 21.

To Thomas BERWYKE 40/.

To Thomas HYLINGESTON 40/.

To godson Edward CORNY 40/, if he take no advantage
of the gifts to servants. A like bequest to William LAMBE.,

To the marriage of five maidens 100/, in worship of the 5
joys of Our Lady. Servants, Crystean and Alison to be two
of said maids, if they take no advantage of gifts to servants.
To Johne, old coachman’s wife, 20/. To Lowys my servant
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in the kitchen, if he take no advantage of the other gifts to
servants.

Residue to my executors to dispose of to the intention of my
will, namely William HAULTE squyer, Thomas TYR-
REL squyer (i.e. Sir Thomas of Heron), William MEL-
RETH citizen and alderman of London, James KILOM
and Robert BEAUCAMP. To each executor 10 marks.
Supervisors Humphrey, Earl of Stafford, John, Earl of
Oxford, Henry BOURCHIER Earl of Eu, Sir Nicoll
DIXON clerk, Robert DARCY squyer and Thomas
GLOUCHESTER squyer.

Testment of Edward TYRREL, squyer the elder made at
Downham in Essex 9 December, 21 Hery VI (1442)

The debts to my mother Dame Eleanor HAULTE and to
my brother William LYSLE (TYRREL struck out) to be
paid.

The Lords of Stafford and Oxford, who stand enfeoffed to
my use in the manors of Shepereth, Malketon, and Melreth
and in rents in said manors and in other rents and services
in the vills of Shepereth, Melreth, Melboume, Foxston,
Malketon, Royston, Waddon, Baryngton, Foulmer, Wen-
dey, and Kmesworth and elsewhere in Cambridgeshire to
make an estate for my wife Anne for life and when my son
Edward come to the age of 21 winters, to make an estate in
reversion to him and to the heirs of his body and, if he die
without such issue, then to Philip and Margaret my daugh-
ters for their lives and on their decease to my nephew
Thomas TYRREL and the heirs male of his body and if he
die without such issue then to my right heirs, provided
always that my nephew Thomas within three years of my
decease fulfill the will of my brother Sir John TYRREL
touching the remainders, so that my nephews William and
William nor my male issue be not defrauded of said remain-
ders and if he break not any article in my will and if he fail
in this the remainder here made to my nephew Thomas shall
be void.

My feoffes who are enfeoffed of my lands and tenements in
Harrow-on-the-hill shall make an estate to my son Edward
at 21, providing also for my wife’s dower.

My feoffes of certain messuages and tenements called “Col-
kyrk”, sometime Lancaster’s, in Hatfield to be sold and the
proceeds expended for an honest priest to sing yearly in
Downham church for my soul and that of my wifeAnne and
Walter TYRRELL my father and Eleanor his wife, my
mother and for the souls of Sir John TYRREL and Sir
William LYSLE knights and of Richard, Thomas, &

William my brothers and of John BASSINGBORNE and
for all I am bound to pray for and for all Christian souls.

My feoffes of certain lands and tenements calld
“Gyffardes”, “Toraldes” and “Buskyns”, sometime called
“Flemynges” in Sowthhanyfeld and Downham to make an
estate for Anne my wife, remainder to my son Edward and
the heirs of his body and if he die without such heirs the said
lands are to remain to my daughter Philip for life, remainder
to my daughter Margaret for life, remainder to my right
heirs.

The feoffes enfeoffed by me at the commandment of my
brother’s will and also the will of Sir William MOUN-
TENEY, that did make an estate for Robert MOUN-
TENEY his cousin and heir and for Margaret my daughter,
his wife, to hold said manor to the use of Robert and
Margaret and the heirs male of Robert by said Margaret and
if Robert die without such heirs to remain to Elizabeth that
was the wife of John CHAMBERLAIN sister of the said
Sir William MOUNTENEY and the heirs male of her body
who shall bear the name and arms of said Sir William
MOUNTENEY, after the form of his last will.

If the said Elizabeth die without such issue male, then to
Margaret, wife of Sir John GERMAN knt,, sister of the
said Elizabeth and the heirs male of her body and, if she
have none, then to John MOUNTENEY of Yorkshire and
the heirs male of his body and if he die without such heirs
male then to come to me and them enfeoffed by my said
brother SirJohn TYRREL and ourheirs and the said manor
to be sold and the proceeds used for the souls of SirWilliam
MOUNTENEY and of his parents and for the souls of all
Chnistians, according to the will of Sir William.

The feoffes of my lands, rents, and tenements called Porters
in Rochefort Hundred, co. Essex shall make an estate forthe
said Robert MOUNTENEY and Margaret my daughter,
his wife, when Robert shall attain when Robert shall attain
21 years, and for the assigns of said Margaret. He refers to
his suit against the Duke of York for the wardship and
marriage of the said Robert.

My Lords Stafford and Oxford and Robert DARCY squyer
and my executors to have my term in Tyrrell’s manor in
Downham for the support of my wife, as | have said manor
by lease from my brother, Sir John TYRREL and confir-
mation from Thomas TYRREL, my nephew.

My feoffees of a tenement called “Daniels”in
Ingegyngeroberlaundry (Buttsbury), now called “Herford-
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stock™ and in Buttsbury to sell the same to make an annuity
for Robert BEAUCHAMP, my servant

To Anne, my wife, my place at Dougate, London, for life,
reversion on her death to be sold and the proceeds applied
to chanty

My plate &c to wife Anne together with my goods at
Downham.

The proceeds from the forfeiture of the mammage of my
wife’s son, John BASSINGBORNE to be divided into 3
parts. The first part to the said John BASSINGBORNE,
the second to my wife to pay the debts of her husband,John
BASSINGBORNE and for alms for her soul and the third
part to my executors for the performance of my will

To my servant, John FRYTH an estate in the house he
dwells in called “Dunmowes” in Downham.

To my servant William BAKE an estate called “Perkyn
Feyrehede” in Southhanyfeld.

To Thomas BOTILER the lands and tenements called
“Barons™ in Downham for life, reversion to my bastard son,
John, and my lands and tenements called “Bartlottes” in
Retyngdon and South Haneyfeld.

Confirms the gift to his wife of the Cambndgeshire lands,
as in his will indented, for her life, remainder to hsi son
Edward at age 21 and the heirs male of his body and if he
and Thomas my nephew die without heirs male, then to the
heirs general of my son Edward, begotten by him and if he
die without heirs of the body then to my right heirs. Dated
14 December, 21 Henry VI (1442)

Morant's Essex Vol Il, p. 50

Buttsbury. Sir Thomas TYRREL, who died in 16 Edward
VI (1476/7), held

White's manor in Buttsbury of Elizabeth, the Queen, by
fealty and 2d rent per annum and Tyrell’s manor in the same
pansh held of the Prioress of Hakelynton by fealty and 6/
rent and 20 messuages, 200 acres of arable land, 40 acres of
meadow, 40 acres of wood in Buttsbury, Ynggingberdlaun-
dry (in Buttsbury) and Hereford Stoke held of the Queen as
of the Duchy of Lancaser (Inquisition, 16 Edward IV, fo.
116).

Sir Thomas TYRREL, who died 2 Henry VIII (1510), held
Tyrrel’s manor in Buttsbury of the Prioress of Hakelynton
and White’s manor in Buttsbury held of Catherine, the
Queen as her Duchy of Lancaster. Thomas, his son and heir,

was aged 22 years (Inquisition, 2|1 November, 5 Henry VIII,
1513, fo. 28)

Vol |, p. 206. Downham. Sir Thomas TYRREL died 1476.
He held Hemnales manor in Downham and 300 acres of
arable land, 40 acres of meadow, 100 acres of pasture, and
4 acres of wood in Downham, South and West Hanningfield,
Wykford, and Ramsden Belhouse of Henry, Earl of Essex
by fealty and rent of 40d p a. (Inquisition, 16 Edward 1V,
1476/7)

Ibid, p. 208. East Hemdon. When Sir James TYRREL
mammed Margaret ?, daughter and heir of Sir William
HERON, in the time of Edward II or III (sic), the Tyrrels
undoubtedly got Heron. Thomas TYRREL in 1363 had
license to impale 400 acres of pasture and wood in Homdon
and Ingrafe (Patent Roll, 37, Edward III). John TYRREL
was one of the founders of a chantry in Wivenhou church in
1413, he held the manor of Heme in East Hemdon of the
King as of his manor of Rochester (Inquisition, 1 Henry V,
1413/14).

Ibid p.251.In 1419, John SUMPLEE of Colchester deliv-
ered Bromford manor in Newenden to John TYRREL and
John CORNWALYS, et als,, and the advowson of the
church.

Woodward and Lockhart’s History of
Hampshire
Vol VIIL p. 15.1In 1370, Sir Thomas TYRREL granted the
manor of Avene (North Avon) to Walter TYRREL and
Eleanor, his wife, to hold of Winchester Castle and reserved
for himself certain lands in Lyndhurst.

Victoria County History of Hampshire

Vol. III, p. 468. Chilworth. In 1365, Thomas PEVEREL
sold Chilworth to Sir Thomas TYRREL of Essex, knt. (Cl.
R., 38, Edward III, m. 32, 28), who priorto 1372 conveyed
it to John DACCOMBE (Chanc. Inquisition Post Mortem,
45 Edward 111 (2nd nos.) 48).

Ibid, p.483. Mainsbridge. Thomas PEVEREL in 1365 sold
the manor of Mainsbridge to Thomas TYRREL knt. of
Essex (Cl. R., 38 Edward III, mm. 32, 28) who almost at
once sold it to Thomas DACCOMBE (Abb. Rot. Ong.,
Rec. Com,, p. 318).

Vol V, p. 125. Milton Manor. In 1365, Thomas, son of Sir
Henry PEVEREL, granted Milton to Sir Thomas TYR-
REL knt. (Cl. R., 38 Edward III, mm. 32, 28), whose son
John (sic) in 1428 held 1/2 knts. fee in Milton (Feudal Aids,
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11, 359) In 1475, Sir Thomas T YRREL, son of John, was
seised and settled it in that year upon his grandson, Thomas
TYRREL in tail (Anc. D. C. 1358). Sir Thomas died 2
years later (Inquisition Post Mortem, 16 Edward IV, 71),
and the grandson died in 1510. /bid, p. 129. North Avon or
Tyrrel’s Manor. Thomas, son of Henry PEVEREL knt |
sold the manor in 1364/5 to Sir Thomas TYRREL and it
descended like Milton in the Tyrrel family.

Ibid, p. 118. Milford. The manor of Pennington’s in Milford
was conveyed in 1364 by Thomas PEVEREL, son of Sir
Henry, to Sir Thomas TYRREL, knt. (Cl. R., 38 Edward
Il mm. 32, 28)

Ibid, p. 130 note. Ripley (Riple) in Sopley. Manor of South
Avon. The family of BELE held the manor from 1285-1347,
and it reverted to BELE in 1391, who conveyed it to Sir
John KNOTTINGLE and his wife for life. (Plac. Abb., p.
209; Hants Fine, file 29, no. 11.) When Eleanor, widow of
Walter TYRREL, died in 1422 she owned the manor of
Avon TYRREL and also an estate in Ripley called Knottin-
gale (Inquisition Post Mortem, 10 Henry V, no 29a; Hants.
Fines, file 21, no. 46; file 29, no. 38; file 31 no. 5).

From the above records a fairly satisfactory pedigree of the
TYRRELS of Heron may be compiled and some previous
errors may be corrected.

Morant’s statement that the family were probably intro-
duced into Essex by the marriage of James TYRREL with
Margaret, heiress of Heron, in the reign of either Edward
11 or I1I would seem to be substantially correct.

However, the fines of 1304/5 show that Sir James was
already in Essex towards the end of Edward I's reign, and
that his wife’s name at that date wasnot Margaret but Alice.
It is, of course, possible that he married twice. The three
fines of 1304/5 show him owning lands in Buttsbury, which
descended to later members ofthe family. In 1304/5, he was
evidently providing for a daughter, Joan, undoubtedly a
minor at the time.

James must have been bom some time back in the thirteenth
century, about 1265-1270. He occurs in 1317 (Cal. Pat. R,

op. cit) and must have been alive as late as 1343 when
James TYRREL the younger occurs (Essex Fines, op. cit.),
but he evidently died soon afteer, before 1345 when James
TYRREL, evidently the younger of 1343 | was complained
of for riot (Cal. Pat. R, op. cit.).

Besides Joan, he was undoubtedly the father of James the
younger and of a son Thomas, who was apparently his heir,
as he appears in a fine at Buttsbury in 1332 as “Thomas
TYRREL the elder” (Essex Fines op. cit.). It is difficult to
say just when he died. He is evidently the “Thomas TYR-
REL, the elder” who occurs in the Close Roll in October
1342 (Cal. Cl. R,, op. cit), and he is probably the Thomas
TYRREL the elder who occurs frequently in the records
350—360. “Thomas TYRREL, the elder” last appears as
knight of the shire from Essex in 1360 (Parliament of
England, op. cit), but as he must have been bom about
1288-—1290, it would seem that he would have been about
70 when he was M. P. m 130, and it may be that the Thomas,
the elder, of 1360 was Sir Thomas who was buried at
Downham about 1382, who may have had a son Thomas
who died a young man shortly after 1360. Thomas TYR-
REL, the elder of 1332, marnied Alice, daugher of Thomas
BLAUND and Agnes, his wife (De Banco Rolls, op. cit.).
They were clearly the parents of Sir Thomas of Heron who
died about 1382.

The first appearance of the latter was in 1335, when, as
Thomas TYRREL the younger with his wife Alice, he was
dealing in land in Great Burston and Ramesden Craye,
which descended in the family, Ramsden Craye being held
in 1476 by Sir Thomas TYRREL of Heron. Thomas TYR-
REL was a prominent man in Essex in lhis day and was
evidently a lawyer. Born about 1310—1315, he married ,
prior to 1335, his wife Alice. He was already knighted by
1355 and was knight of the shire in Essex in 1355, 1357,
1364/5, 1366, 1369, 1372, and 1373. He was Steward Gen-
eral of King Edward III's daughters in 1363 (Calendar of
Ancient Deeds, C 2529, op. cit.).

In 1364/5 he was buying the fees of Thomas, son of Sir
Henry PEVEREL, in Hampshire at North Avon, Chil-
worth, Milton, Mainsbridge, and Milford (V. C. H. Hants,
op. cit). Some of these he retained, but others he soon
disposed of. The manor of North Avon and that of Milton
descended in the family and were held in 1476 by Sir
Thomas TYRREL of Heron.

It is possible that the Essex TYRRELS may have descended
from the Hampshire TYRRELS of'the thirteenth century as
suggested by Mr. TYRREL. Sir Thomas died shortly before
10 June 1383, when he is mentioned in the Close Rolls as
“lately deceased.” He is buried in Downham church with his
wife, Alice, his brass showing him in full armor. His brass
is inscribed: “Mons. Thomas Tyrrel gist ici dieu de slame eit
verraie mercy”. His wife’s inscription reads: Alice g fut la
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feme de Mons ' Thoms Tyrrel gist ici dieude slame eit mercy™
(Essex Arch. Soc. Trans., ns., vol 6, p. 233).

The pedigrees state that Sir Thomas mamed, first, Alice
d’ADLEIGH, whose arms “chequy gold & sable” appear
with the TYRREL arms “silver, two chevronels azure, a
bordure engrailed gules”, on their brass above mentioned,
and that his second wife was Eleanor, daughter of John
FLAMBARD However, the writer has found no evidence
of'the second wife. On 7 June 1384 “Dame Alice TYRREL,
who was the wife of Thomas TYRREL, knt. is mentioned
in the Close Roll, and again on 2 Aug. 1395. From an entry
in the Patent Rolls of 2 Aug. 1398 it appears that Alice was
dead at that time (Calendar of Patent Rolls, op .cit.).

All pedigrees state that Sir Thomas was the fater of Sir John
TYRREL who died in 1437, but the evidence of the will of
his brother, Edward of Downham, and the Fine Roll of 1422
(op. cit.) show conclusively that they were sons of Walter
TYRREL and the latter was evidently the son of Sir
Thomas; Walter’s descendants held the Essex and Hamp-
shire lands of Sir Thomas. In 1370, Sir Thomas gave the
manor of North Avon, Hants., to Walter TYRREL and
Eleanor, his wife (Cal. Inq., vol II, 302; Woodward &
Lockhart’s Hants ., 0p. cit.). Accordingly, it is not unreason-
able to assume that Walter was the son of Sir Thomas.

Coram Rege Roll, Hilary, 8 Henry V, m. 21 (1420/21)
Cambnidge. William POTTON, clerk, and William
BATEMAN, on the 27th November 12 Richard II, before
the mayor of the staple at Westminister, recognised that they
owed Elizabeth FLAMBARD and John FLAMBARD
then dead (iam defunctis), 200 pounds, to be paid by Easter
next, which had not been paid.

Nicholas HAUTE [?HANTE] knight, and Aliamor
[Eleanor] his wife, daughter of the aforesaid Elizabeth and
executrix of the testament of the said Elizabeth, which the
said Elizabeth outlived the said John FLAMBARD, de-
manded satisfaction of the debt.

The aforesaid William POTTEN died and William BATE-
MAN could not be found, so an inquisition was ordered to
be made into their property in co. Cambridge, i.e., the manor
of Huntingfelds, etc.

Ralph BATEMAN appeared and said he now held the said
manor, and cited an agreement made with the said Elizabeth
for repayment of the debt over a longer period. The said
Elizabeth died on the feast of the Nativity of St. John the
Baptist 1394 and never received any of the money agreed to
be paid.

The final decision of this court is that the said Alianora is
to be awarded the said manor of Huntingfelds in Harleton,
also the manor called Ladysmanor in that township, and two
messuages and eighty-two acres of land m Harleton, in
settlement of the above debt and her costs and damages in
this case.

Conceming Walter TYRREL of Essex the entries in the
records are not numerous. In 1364 he witnessed an Essex
deed (Cal. Cl. R, op. cit). He is probably the Walter
TYRREL who, on 15 Feb. 1367 was granted a ferry overthe
Tweed at Berwick for his good services to the King and his
daughters, Joan and Isabel (Calendar of Patent Rolls., op.
cit.). In 1363 he is named as Steward General to the King's
daughter Isabel (Cal. Anct. Deeds, op. cit). In 1370 he,
together with his wife Eleanor, received from Sir Thomas
TYRREL the Hampshire manor of North Avon. On 3 Dec.
1376 he, together with Sir. Thomas, witnessed an Essex
deed (Calendar of Fine Rolls, op. cit.).

He occurs in the Fine Roll on 11 Nov. 1391 as “Walter
TYRREL of Essex”, and again on 12 March 1406 (Calendar
of Fine Rolls, op. cit.), but died sometime thereafter, as on
12 May 1422 his widow Eleanor, who had married Sir
Nicholas HAULTE was dead. The entry of her death in the
Fine Roll states that Sir John of Heron was the son and heir
of Walter, and so does the will of John's brother, Edward
TYRREL of Downham.

Walter & Eleanor had issue: Sir John, the eldest son and
heir who held Heron, the Buttsbury manors in Essex, and
the Hampshire manors of North Avon, Ripley, and Milton.
Sir John was knight of the shire for Essex in 1411, 1413,
1417, 1419, 1421, 1422, 1425, 1429, 1430/1, 1433, and
1436/7. He was Speaker and died in 1437, leaving by his
wife Alice daughter and co-heiress of Sir William de COG-
GESHALL, a son and heir, Sir Thomas TYRREL of
Heron, bom in 1411, died in 1476, the ancestor of the later
TYRRELS of Heron (cf. “Wedgewood's History of the
Parliament, Biographies, 14391509 p. 891, for his life)

Sir Johns other sons were William of Gipping co. Suffolk,
and William of Beeches, co. Essex (cf. Wedgewood, op.
cit.). William of Gipping was the father of Sir James
TYRREL, the creature of Richard 1lI, who murdered the
little princes in the Tower.
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